
 
 

 

EXECUTIVE 
 
Date: Thursday 19 June 2025 
Time:  5.30 pm 
Venue: Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business.  
 
If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Mark Devin, Democratic 
Services Manager on 01392 265477. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street. 
 
Membership - 
Councillors Bialyk (Chair), Wright (Deputy Chair), Asvachin, Foale, Patrick, Vizard, Williams, R and 
Wood 
 

Agenda 
 

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 
  
1    Apologies  

 To receive apologies for absence from Committee members. 
 

 
 
2    Declarations of Interest  

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been 
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the 
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the 
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave 
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item. 
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the day of the meeting. 
 

 

 
3    Local Government Act 1972 - Exclusion of Press and Public  

 It is considered that the Committee would be unlikely to exclude the press and 
public during consideration of any of the items on the agenda, but if it should wish 
to do so, the following resolution should be passed:- 
 
RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of 
the particular item(s) on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part 1, Schedule 
12A of the Act. 
 

 

 
4    Pendragon Road Disposal Report  

 To consider the report of the Strategic Director of Corporate Resources. (Pages 3 - 



 18) 
Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next scheduled meeting of the Executive will be held on Tuesday 24 June 2025 at 5.30 pm in 
the Civic Centre. 
 
A statement of the executive decisions taken at this meeting will be produced and published 
on the Council website as soon as reasonably practicable. 
 
Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  
This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you how you can ask a question 
at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact Democratic Services at 
committee.services@exeter.gov.uk 
 
Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print on 
request to Democratic Services committee.services@exeter.gov.uk 

mailto:committee.services@exeter.gov.uk
mailto:committee.services@exeter.gov.uk


 

REPORT TO EXECUTIVE 
Date of Meeting: 19th June 2025 

Report of: Strategic Director of Corporate Resources & s151 Officer and the Head of 

Commercial Assets 

Title: Pendragon Road Disposal Report 

Is this a Key Decision?  

Yes 

Is this an Executive or Council Function? 

Executive  

1. What is the report about? 

1.1 The report considers a revised approach that has been made to the Council to grant 

access over a strip of amenity land off Pendragon Road (see Appendix 1) to facilitate the 

development of land adjoining the Council’s ownership for affordable housing. 

2. Recommendation:  

2.1 That Executive resolves to delegate authority to the Head of Commercial Assets, in 

consultation with the Strategic Director of Corporate Resources and the Leader, to agree 

the final disposal terms and red line for granting access over amenity land (see Appendix 

1) for the facilitation of the delivery of new affordable homes, subject to securing an 

independent valuation confirming the final terms represent best consideration. 

3. Reasons for the recommendation: 

3.1 Members are being asked to revisit a decision made in regard to the disposal of the 

above land in July 2024 in light of a recent intentions to incorporate 100% affordable 

housing. 

3.2 The grant of access over the Council’s land will enable the adjoining land to be 

brought forward for development in accordance with the planning consent (Ref: 

22/0511/OUT) secured on the site (but uplifted to 100% affordable housing).  

3.3 The Council will secure a capital receipt for providing access over their land. The 

development of the adjoining land could also generate new Council Tax income streams 

and potential temporary housing cost savings. 

3.4 Should members decide not to proceed with the grant of access it will not be possible 

to develop the adjoining housing land and the provision of new affordable homes may not 

be delivered. 

4. What are the resource implications including non financial resources 

4.1 There should be positive financial benefits arising from the proposal with a material 

capital receipt from granting access over the amenity land. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



5. Section 151 Officer comments: 

5.1 If agreed the sale will produce a capital receipt, which can be used to either finance 

the capital programme, reducing the need to borrow or to repay existing debt, which will 

reduce the interest and repayment of debt figures. Given there is a significant need for 

short dated assets, such as vehicles and It within the existing capital programme, the 

receipt would be most effectively used to finance this type of asset as it is uneconomical 

to borrow for a short period of time. 

6. What are the legal aspects? 

6.1 The proposal will require the Council to comply with section 123 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 (‘the Act’). Section 123 (1) and (2) state that a principal council 

may dispose of land held by them in any manner they wish subject to obtaining the best 

consideration that can reasonably be achieved unless the consent of the Secretary of 

State is obtained.  

6.2 As members will note from this report, the council owns a strip of amenity land 

bordering Pendragon Road and which is the sole means of accessing the site proposed 

for development. Neither of the planning permissions which have been granted can be 

implemented unless the council agrees to dispose of an interest in the amenity land so 

that the site can be accessed. 

 6.3 The matter concerning the proposal by Land Promotion Group Limited to enter into  

option agreements for the purchase of the access land was considered by the council’s 

executive committee on 9 July 2024. Executive resolved not to sell the two areas of 

amenity land. Officers are now putting to Executive a new proposal from a different party. 

Executive are required to determine whether or not the land should be disposed of on the 

basis of the terms of this new offer. 

7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 

7.1 Members’ attention is drawn to the detailed legal provisions that apply and must be 

observed as set out in paragraph 6 above.   

7.2 When considering matters which have a financial impact, councillors have the 

following legal duties: 

a) To act in accordance with their statutory duties and responsibilities. 

b) To act reasonably. 

c) To have careful regard to their fiduciary duty to its rate payers and Council taxpayers. 

When making judgement calls, councillors are reminded of their obligation to act 

reasonably and in accordance with the principles set down in the Wednesbury case 

(Associated Provincial Picture Houses Ltd v Wednesbury Corporation [1948]). This 

means that councillors are required to consider and take into account all relevant 

considerations and ignore any irrelevant considerations. Put simply, it would be unlawful 

for the Council to come to a view which is unreasonable in the sense that it is so irrational 

that no reasonable authority could have reached it. 

Page 4



Councillors are under a duty to conduct administration in a business-like manner with 

reasonable care, skill and caution and with due regard to the council’s rate payers. When 

discharging their obligations, councillors will need to consider: 

a) Prudent use of the council’s resources, including the raising of income and the 

control of expenditure. 

b) Financial prudence both long and short term. 

c) Striking a fair balance between the interest of the council taxpayers on the one hand 

and the community interest on the other, 

    7.3  Members are required to have regard to all relevant matters including the potential to 

 secure a significant capital receipt and the delivery of housing. In balancing the  

 competing interests and arriving at a decision, members need to decide whether  or 

 not to dispose of the land. 

8. Report details: 

Background 

8.1 The Council owns a strip of amenity land along Pendragon Road that separates the 

public highway from an area of privately owned land to the north. The owner of that land 

has secured an outline planning consent on appeal (Ref 21/0020/OUT) and at local level 

(Ref: 22/0511/OUT) for a residential scheme of up to 100 dwellings and associated 

infrastructure. A unilateral undertaking has been made (and carried over to the local level 

consent from the appeal consent) that provides for 50% of the proposed dwellings be 

affordable housing, with a split of 70% social rented, 25% first homes and 5% 

intermediate housing. Formal open space and a play area would also be provided. 

8.2 Previously, following the granting of the outline planning consent, the adjoining owner 

approached the Council to explore the possibility of acquiring an option to purchase two 

areas of the Council’s amenity land. The two areas would have allowed the consented 

scheme to be built out but at the time of the disposal decision (July ’24) Executive were 

not minded to dispose of the land. 

8.3 Since the decision not to dispose in July 2024 the adjoining owners have secured a 

developer that would deliver the whole of the development as affordable homes. 

8.4 If an agreement can be secured over the Council’s access land, the land benefitting 

from the planning consent will be bought for affordable homes delivery. Under the terms 

of the proposed agreement the developer would be able to secure the access land for a 

price equating to at least one third of the enhanced land value of the adjoining land (less 

its base value as agricultural land).  

8.5 The proposed end purchaser is now LiveWest, a housing association with homes 

across the Southwest and a part of The Exeter Partnership, who have committed 

(working with Vistry and Homes England) to deliver 100% affordable housing. A scenario 

that would demonstrate the council working positively with local, regional and national 

partners to meet local affordable housing need.   

8.6 The City Council has committed to a brownfield first strategy regarding the delivery of 

homes in the emerging Exeter (Loca)l Plan and has accepted that to enable the delivery 

Page 5



of homes on brownfield (often derelict contaminated) sites and maintain viability, lower 

levels of affordable housing may l need to be accepted, compared with greenfield sites. 

Whilst this should stimulate the delivery of more homes in Exeter it does mean any 

greenfield sites, like this one, may become an important source of affordable homes in 

the City. 

8.7 An excellent locally produced (and ECC funded) short film on the Mincinglake and 

Whipton ward titled “Proud to Be” (see: New film highlights pride in Exeter’s 

neighbourhoods - Exeter City Council News) emphasises both the importance of 

accessible green open space and the need for affordable homes to local residents and 

with the changes secured since last year’s decision it is now considered that the current 

proposition contributes towards both. 

8.8 A court hearing has been set for the 18th July to consider the decision in July ‘24, not 

to grant access for development, was taken legally.  

Planning Position 

8.9 There is no material difference between the two planning permissions granted for the 

Pendragon Road site. The appeal decision was a significant material consideration in the 

determination of the subsequent application, providing substantial weight in favour of 

approval. The Inspector’s conclusions on key matters, including the principle of 

development and the provision of public open space, were instrumental in shaping the 

local planning authority’s assessment of the later application, leading to its approval in 

line with established planning policy and precedent. 

Public Open Space 

8.10 The legal agreements for the Pendragon Road development secure a minimum of 

10% of the total site area, which includes both the application land (see land outlined red 

on Appendix 2) and the adjacent appellant’s land (see land outline blue on Appendix 2), 

as Public Open Space (POS). This commitment is binding within the s106 agreements 

and was a determining factor in the Inspector’s decision. 

8.11 Unlike the Spruce Close (ref: 20/0538/OUT) planning agreement (which secures the 

delivery of the additional valley park land – see Appendix 2), the Pendragon Road legal 

agreement does not explicitly safeguard the adjacent appellant’s land as POS in 

perpetuity. While the landowners have indicated a willingness to designate this area as 

POS and potentially transfer it to the Council, this is not currently a legally secured 

position under the planning agreements. 

8.12 If Executive resolve to approve the revised access proposal, additional negotiations 

to formally secure the adjacent land as POS will be required, actioned and secured via 

either the planning process or an alternative legal agreement. 

Local Plan Position 

8.13 The City Council is committed to a brownfield first strategy regarding the delivery of 

homes in the emerging Exeter Plan. However, this presents significant challenges in 

terms of the viability and delivery of homes on brownfield (often derelict contaminated) 

sites.  

Page 6

https://news.exeter.gov.uk/new-film-highlights-pride-in-exeter-s-neighbourhoods/
https://news.exeter.gov.uk/new-film-highlights-pride-in-exeter-s-neighbourhoods/


8.14 New evidence supporting the Exeter Plan (which was not available when the City 

Council first considered the disposal of this land in July 2024) demonstrates the necessity 

of adopting a differential approach to affordable housing, with a much lower percentage 

on brownfield sites (15%), compared to greenfield (35%). Whilst this should stimulate the 

delivery of more homes in Exeter it does mean any greenfield sites, like this one, will 

continue to be a major source of affordable homes in the City. 

8.15 One of the key requirements of the Exeter Plan is to ensure the delivery of 

appropriate sites in the city to meet housing needs – this is a clear priority of Government. 

8.16 The Exeter Plan is looking to allocate land to provide more than 5,000 homes out of 

a total housing requirement of nearly 14,000, over the plan period. Sites with planning 

permission are included in the housing projections of the plan.  On this basis, the homes 

permitted at the Pendragon Road site have been included in the underlying assumptions 

for the Exeter Plan and, releasing the land to support the delivery of homes on the site 

will support the progress of the Exeter Plan at Examination.  

Access Position 

8.17 Since the decision in July ‘24 not so grant access over Council land the landowner 

has conditionally sold the site, on market terms, for the delivery of affordable homes. 

8.18 Subject to independent sign off that the Council is securing best consideration for its 

land the terms of the access land disposal are that the developer will pay one third of the 

sale price of the adjoining development land (less its base value as agricultural land). 

Based on the anticipated price for the adjoining development land the capital receipt to 

the Council is anticipated to be in the region of £1 million. 

8.19 Provisions in the final agreement will ensure the access is only available if a totally 

affordable scheme is promoted and completed.    

8.20 The Council’s strip of land serves no substantive amenity purpose although the 

established trees and hedges on the land warrant some protective measures. These 

measures can be built into any legal agreement. The land does, however, effectively 

control access to the adjoining land from a development perspective and therefore does 

serve to significantly restrict its development potential should that remain the preferred 

course of action. 

9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 

9.1 This decision could contribute to the Council’s strategic priority of ‘Leading a Well-Run 

Council’ by potentially securing capital receipts and the delivery of affordable homes for 

local residents.  

10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 

10.1 The grant of access over amenity land does not expose the Council to risk. 

11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)  

11.1 Under the Act’s Public Sector Equalities Duty, decision makers are required to 

consider the need to: 

Page 7



• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited conduct; 

• advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 

account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; and 

• foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding. 

11.2 In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on 

equality of decisions, policies and practices.  These duties do not prevent the authority 

from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals 

that consider the impacts on all members of the community. 

11.3 In making decisions the authority must take into account the potential impact of that 

decision in relation to age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex 

and gender, gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and 

new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage and civil partnership status in coming to a 

decision. 

11.4 In recommending this proposal no potential impact has been identified on people 

with protected characteristics as determined by the Act because the proposals do not 

seek to reduce or change services to the extent that they will impact on any individuals 

including those with protected characteristics. 

12. Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:   

12.1 There are no direct carbon impacts arising from the recommendation. 

13. Are there any other options? 

13.1 The Council is not obliged to grant access over its amenity land. As such it could 

decide to reject the proposal and retain the land for amenity uses. 

Strategic Director of Corporate Resources & s151 Officer, Dave Hodgson and  

Head of Commercial Assets, Ben Colman  

Author: David Martin, Principal Development Surveyor  

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

Appendices:- 

1. Appendix 1 - Pendragon Road Access Lane (Highlighted Blue) 

2. Appendix 2 – Pendragon Road Context Information 

 

Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 

Contact for enquires:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 4.36 
01392 265275 

Page 8



 
 

Equality Impact Assessment: Pendragon Road Disposal Report 
 
The Equality Act 2010 includes a general duty which requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, to have due regard to the 
need to: 
 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act.  

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and people who do not share it. 

• Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not 
 
In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on equality of decisions, policies and practices.  These duties do 
not prevent the authority from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals that consider the impacts on all 
members of the community. 
 
Authorities which fail to carry out equality impact assessments risk making poor and unfair decisions which may discriminate against particular 
groups and worsen inequality.  
 

Committee name and 
date: 

 

Report Title 
 

Decisions being 
recommended:  

 

People with protected 
characteristics potentially 
impacted by the decisions 
to be made:  
 

Executive (19th June 2025) 
 

Pendragon Road Disposal Report To grant access over a strip of 
amenity land off Pendragon Road 
to facilitate the development of 
land adjoining the Council’s 
ownership for affordable housing. 

No potential impact has been 
identified on people with 
protected characteristics as 
determined by the Equality Act 
2010 because the proposals do 
not seek to reduce or change 
services to the extent that they will 

P
age 9



Committee name and 
date: 

 

Report Title 
 

Decisions being 
recommended:  

 

People with protected 
characteristics potentially 
impacted by the decisions 
to be made:  
 

impact on any individuals 
including those with protected 
characteristics. The proposed 
access land at Pendragon Road 
is ancillary amenity land with no 
existing residents or tenants. 

Factors to consider in the assessment:  For each of the groups below, an assessment has been made on whether the proposed 
decision will have a positive, negative or neutral impact. This is must be noted in the table below alongside brief details of why this 
conclusion has been reached and notes of any mitigation proposed. Where the impact is negative, a high, medium or low 
assessment is given. The assessment rates the impact of the policy based on the current situation (i.e. disregarding any actions 
planned to be carried out in future). 

 

High impact – a significant potential impact, risk of exposure, history of complaints, no mitigating measures in place etc. 
Medium impact –some potential impact exists, some mitigating measures are in place, poor evidence 
Low impact – almost no relevancy to the process, e.g. an area that is very much legislation led and where the Council has very 
little discretion 

 

Protected characteristic/ area of 
interest 

Positive 
or 
Negative 
Impact 

High, 
Medium or 
Low 
Impact 

Reason 

Race and ethnicity (including 
Gypsies and Travellers; migrant 
workers; asylum seekers). 

  No reduction in council services and no existing residents or 
tenants 

Disability: as defined by the Equality 
Act – a person has a disability if they 
have a physical or mental impairment 
that has a substantial and long-term 
adverse impact on their ability to carry 
out normal day-to-day activities. 

  No reduction in council services and no existing residents or 
tenants 

P
age 10



Protected characteristic/ area of 
interest 

Positive 
or 
Negative 
Impact 

High, 
Medium or 
Low 
Impact 

Reason 

Sex/Gender   No reduction in council services and no existing residents or 
tenants 

Gender reassignment   No reduction in council services and no existing residents or 
tenants 

Religion and belief (includes no 
belief, some philosophical beliefs such 
as Buddhism and sects within 
religions). 

  No reduction in council services and no existing residents or 
tenants 

Sexual orientation (including 
heterosexual, lesbian, gay, bisexual). 

  No reduction in council services and no existing residents or 
tenants 

Age (children and young people aged 
0-24; adults aged 25-50; younger 
older people aged 51-75/80; older 
people 81+; frail older people; people 
living with age related conditions. The 
age categories are for illustration only 
as overriding consideration should be 
given to needs). 

  No reduction in council services and no existing residents or 
tenants 

Pregnancy and maternity including 
new and breast feeding mothers 

  No reduction in council services and no existing residents or 
tenants 

Marriage and civil partnership 
status 

  No reduction in council services and no existing residents or 
tenants 

 
Actions identified that will mitigate any negative impacts and/or promote inclusion 
 
 

Officer:  Dave Hodgson, Strategic Director for Corporate Resources 

Date:  19th June 2025 

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Mincinglake Valley Park

Savoy Hill Valley Park

development for 93 dwellings 
(20/0538/OUT & 23/1174/RES)

Additional land secured as 
Valley Park (20/0538/OUT) Land will become public 

open space following 
transfer to Management 
Body or City Council or 
its Nominee at 50% 

The legal agreements for 
21/0020/OUT and 
22/0511/OUT 

site)
secure a minimum of 
10% of the combined 
area (shown outlined in 
blue and red) as public 
open space, which will 
be transferred to a 
Management Company 
prior to occupation of the 
final dwelling. The legal 
agreements do not 
secure the adjacent land 
to the site outlined in 
blue as public open 
space, which is 26% of 
the combined area. 
However, it is possible 
that this land could be 
included in the public 
open space to be 
transferred.

P
age 15



P
age 16



P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Agenda

	4 Pendragon Road Disposal Report
	EQIA - Pendragon Road - May 25
	Appendix 1 - ECC Amenity Land (Shaded Blue)
	Appendix 2 - Pendragon Road Context Information




